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Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited is a company limited by shares. incorporated and domiciled in Australia.
Its registered office is:

Level 18

Suncorp Metway Centre
36 Wickham Terrace
Brisbane, QLD 4000
Australia.

A descriplion of the nature of the Company's operations and its principal activities is included in the Directors’
Report on pages 1 to 3, which is not part of the financial report.



Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited
Directors’ report
for the year ended 30 June 2011

Your directors present their report together with the financial report for Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited
(“the Company”) for the year ended 30 June 2011,

Directors

The directors of the Company at any time during or since the end of the financial year are:
Non-executive

John D Story (Chairman) (appointed 1 December 1996)
llana R Atlas (appointed 1 January 2011)
William J Bartlett (appointed 1 July 2003)
Dr lan D Blackburne (a2ppointed 3 August 2000, resigned 31 August 2010)
Paula J Dwyer (appointed 26 April 2007)
Stuart | Grimshaw (appointed 27 January 2010, resigned 23 August 2011)
Ewoud J Kulk (appointed 20 March 2007)
Geoffrey T Ricketts (appointed 20 March 2007)
Dr Zygmunt E Switkowski (appoinled 19 September 2005)
Executive

Patrick J R Snowball (appointed 1 September 2009)

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Company during the course of the year were the provision of life insurance,
superannuation and investment products and related services to the retail, corporate and commercial sectors,
There were no significant changes in the nature of the activities carried out by the Company during the year.

Operating and financial review

Overview of the Company

The operating profit after income tax for the year was $39.9 million (2010: $58.2 million). Continuing economic
uncertainty following the Global Financial Crisis coupled with adverse claims and lapse experience on segments
of the portfolio contributed to the result.

Total premiums revenue for the year was $200.8 million {2010: $212.0 million).

Investment earnings on shareholders' capital and retained earnings (statutory fund) net of applicable income tax
was $18.8 million (2010: $20.0 million).

Emergence of insurance contract planned profit margins net of applicable income lax was $26.3 million (2010:
$23.2 million).

Capitalised losses of $1.6 million (2010: $1.3 million) were recognised during the reporting period due to reviews
in claim cost assumptions and assumed expense rates for some products that are in loss recognition.

The financial strength of our business is reflected by the coverage of the Solvency Reserve, based on the
Solvency Requirement as prescribed by APRA’s Prudential Standard LPS 2.04. The coverage of the Solvency
Reserve for the statutory funds of 2.8 times at 30 June 2011 (2010: 2.7 times) has been maintained throughout
the year,

On 7 January 2011, the Suncorp Group Limited and its subsidiaries, completed a restructure which resulted in a
non-operating holding company, Suncorp Group Limited replacing Suncorp-Metway Lid as the ultimate parent of
the Group. Following the restructure, Suncorp Group established a non-operating holding company, being
Suncorp Life Holdings Limited (formerly Asteron Group Limited), specifically for the Life business.
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Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited
Directors’ report (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2011

Operating and financial review (continued)

Significant changes in state of affairs

In the opinion of the directors there were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Company that
occurred during the financial year under review.

Environmental regulation

The operations of the Company are not subject to any particular and significant environmental regulation under
any law of the Commonwealth of Australia or any of the States or Territories.

The Company has not incurred any liability (including rectification costs) under any environmental legistation.
Dividends

During the year the directors recommended and paid interim dividends of $0.129 per ordinary share (2010;
$0.461), amounting to $5.0 million (2010: $18.0 million), $0.694 per ordinary share (2010: $0.179), amounting to
$27.0 million (2010: $7.0 million) and $nil per ordinary share (2010: $0.177), amounting to $nil (2010: $6.9million).
Further details of dividends paid are set out in note 21 to the financial report.

Since the end of the financial year the directors have recommended payment of final dividend of $nil per ordinary
share (2010: $0.771). amounting to $nil million (2010: $30.0 million).

Events subsequent to reporting date

The Company's parent entity Suncorp Life Holdings Limited approved a capital injection of $21.0 million into the
Company on 17 August 2011.

There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report, any other
item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, to
affect significantly the operations of the Company, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the
Company in future financial years.

Likely developments

Part 9 amalgamation of Life insurance business

It is proposed, effective 1 January 2012, that all of the life insurance business of Asteron Life Limited (ALL) will be
transferred to the Company. The amalgamation of the businesses will be made in accordance with a Scheme to
be approved by the Federal Court of Australia in accordance with the Part 9 of the Life Insurance Act 1995. Under
the terms of the proposed Scheme of Transfer, the existing policies. assets and liabilities will be transferred from
ALL to the Company. In addition, the Company proposes to transfer its participating business in the No 1 statutory
fund to a new No 3 statutory fund.

Other developments

Further information on the likely developments in the operations of the Company and the expected results of those
operations in future financial years have not been included in this report because disclosure of the information
would be likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the Company.

Indemnification and insurance of officers

Indemnification

Under the ullimate parent entity's Constitution, the ultimate parent entity, Suncorp Group Limited indemnifies each
person who is or has been a director or officer of the Company. The indemnity relates to all liabilities to another
party (other than the Company or a related body corporate) that may arise in connection with the performance of
their duties to the Company, except where the liability arises out of conduct involving a lack of good faith. The
Constitution stipulates that the ultimate parent entity will meet the full amount of such liabilities, including costs and
expenses incurred in successfully defending civil or criminal proceedings or in connection with an application, in
relation to such proceedings, in which relief is granted under the Corporations Act 2001.

Insurance premiums

During the financial year ended 30 June 2011, the uitimate parent entity Suncorp Group Limited paid insurance
premiums in respect of a Directors' and Officers' Liability insurance contract. The contract insures each person
who is or has been a director or executive officer (as defined in the Corporations Act 2001) of the Company
against certain liabilities arising in the course of their duties to the Company. The directors have not included
details of the nature of the liabilities covered or the amount of premium paid in respect of the insurance contract as
such disctosure is prohibited under the terms of the contract.
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Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited
Directors’ report (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2011

Lead auditor’'s indebﬁeﬁaéh'ééudé‘clératién'
The lead audilor's independence declaration 1s set out on page 4 and forms part of lhe direclors’ report for the
year ended 30 June 2011.

Rounding off

The Company is of a kind referced to in ASIC Class Order 98/100, issued by the Australian Securities &
Invesimenls Commission, relating to the ‘rounding off” of amounts in the direclors’ report. Amounts in the directors'
report have been rounded off in accordance with that Class Order to lhe nearest hundred thousand dollars unless

otherwise stated.

This report is made in accordance with a resolution of directors.

e
John D Story
Director

(>

d\/\_/\_/\_/\./\
i —~

ick J R Snowball
Managing Director

Brisbane
24 August 2011
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Lead Auditor’s Independence Declaration under Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001

To: the directors of Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited

| declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, in relation to the audit for the financial
year ended 30 June 2011 there have been:

(i)  no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the
Corporations Act 200] in relalion to the audit; and

(i) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the
audit.

(77

KPMG

David Kells
Partner

Sydney
24 August 2011
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Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited
Statement of financial position

as at 30 June 2011
2011 2010
Note $m $m

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 13 385.6 3421
Outstanding premiums 12.1 12.1
Other financial assets

Equity security investments 14 1,5608.3 1,684.9

Debt security investments 14 1,836.2 1,669.3

Property investments 14 209.8 218.9

Other investments 14 2.3 7.0
Receivables 15 132.4 85.7
Gross policy liabilities ceded under reinsurance 19(d) 78.3 92.8
Deferred acquisition costs 16 3.7 6.1
Deferred tax assets 12 9.5 15.1
Other assets 0.1 0.1
Total assets 4,178.3 4,134.1
Liabilities
Payables and other liabilities 17 117.2 61.8
Premiums in advance 3.1 3.2
Deposits and short term borrowings 18 4.7 18.2
Gross insurance contract liabilities 19(b) 1,857.7 1,783.5
Gross investment contract liabilities 19(c) 1,498.3 1,527.0
Unwested policyowner benefits liabilities 19(e) 365.5 386.5
Total liabilities 3,846.5 3,780.2
Net assets 331.8 353.9
Equity
Share capital 20 38.9 38.9
Retained earnings 292.9 315.0
Total equity 331.8 353.9

The above statement of financial position is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited
Statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 30 June 2011

Note
Revenue
Premium revenue 6
Less: Outwards reinsurance expense
Net premium revenue
Investment revenue 7
Other revenue 8
Net revenue
Claims and expenses
Cilaims expense 9
Less: Reinsurance recoweries revenue 8
Net claims expense
Operating expenses 10
increase in net insurance contract liabilities 19(b),(d)
Increase in investment contract liabilities 19(c)
Decrease (Increase) in unvested policyowner benefits liabilities 19(e)

Net claims and expenses

Profit before tax
Income tax expense 12
Profit for the financial year

Other comprehensive income for the financial year

Total comprehensive income for the financial year attributable
to the members of Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited

2011 2010
$m $m
200.8 212.0
(46.4) (47.6)
154.4 164.4
337.4 362.4
4.6 53.1
496.4 579.9
(174.9)  (165.8)
45.6 39.5
(129.3)  (126.3)
(54.0)  (101.7)
(133.2) (98.6)
(114.9)  (148.6)
21.0 (6.2)
(410.4)  (481.4)
86.0 98.5
46.1)  (40.3)
38.9 58.2
39.9 58.2

The above statement of comprehensive income is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited
Statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 30 June 2011

Share Retained Total
Note capital earnings equity

$m $m $m

Balance at 1 July 2009 39.0 288.7 327.7
Total comprehensive income

Profit for the financial year - 58.2 58.2

Other comprehensive income - - -
Total comprehensive income - 58.2 58.2
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Contribution by and distribution to owners:

Capital Redemptions 20 (0.1) - (0.1)

Dividends to shareholders 21 - {31.9) (31.9)
Balance at 30 June 2010/ 1 July 2010 38.9 315.0 353.9

Profit for the financial year - 39.9 39.9

Other comprehensive income - - -
Total comprehensive income - 39.9 39.9
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Contribution by and distribution to owners:

Dividends to shareholders 21 - (62.0) (62.0)
Balance at 30 June 2011 38.9 292.9 331.8

The above statement of changes in equity is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying noies.
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Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited
Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 30 June 2011

Cash flows from operating activities
Premiums received

Fee income received

Other operating income paid

Reinsurance premiums paid

Claims payments under policies
Reinsurance and other recoweries received
Operating expenses paid

interest received

Dividends received

Property income received

Other investments received

Tax paid

Net cash outflow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of financial assets

Proceeds from sale of investments

Net movement in loans

Net cash inflow from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of share capital

Net decrease in deposits and other borrowings
Dividends paid

Net cash outflow from financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June

2011 2010
Note $m $m
441.9 548.5
4.6 38.3
- 0.1)
(46.9) (51.0)
(694.2) (737.3)
38.3 37.0
(94.7) (76.8)
91.7 99.8
69.1 39.4
21.5 6.3
20.9 19.7
(8.5) {16.7)
22 (56.3) (91.9)
(2,495.1) (3,605.7)
2,603.0 3,917.9
31.9 {(0.3)
139.8 311.9
- (0.1)
(5.0) (12.5)
{35.0)  (31.9)
(40.0) (44.5)
43.5 176.5
342.1 166.6
13 385.6 342.1

The above statement of cash flows is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Page 9



Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited
Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2011

1. Basis of preparation

Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited (the Company) is a company domiciled in Australia and the address of the
Company’'s registered office is Level 18, 36 Wickham Terrace, Brisbane, QLD. 4000.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 August 2011.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis unless the application of fair value
measurements is required by relevant accounting standards.

Significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out in note 2.

The risk management objeclives and structure including the risk management of exposure arising from financial
instruments are detailed in note 4.

Where necessary, comparatives have been restated to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.

These financial statements are presented in Australian dollars which is the Company's functional and presentation
currency.

As the Company is of a kind referred to in ASIC Class Order 98/100 dated 10 July 1998, all financial information
presented in Australian dollars has been rounded to the nearest one hundred thousand unless otherwise stated.,

1.1. Statement of compliance

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with
Australian Accounling Standards (AASBs) (including Australian Interpretations) adopted by the Australian
Accounting Standards Board {(AASB) and the Corporations Act 2001. The financial statements of the Company
comply with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and interpretations adopted by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

1.2. Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and the amounts reported in the financial statements. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based con historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Where revisions are made to accounting estimates, any financial impact is recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised.

Significant estimates, judgements and assumptions are discussed in the following notes:
¢ Net policy liabilities in note 3
¢ Valuation of financial instruments and fair value hierarchy disclosures in note 4.

Assets arising from reinsurance contracts: Assets arising from reinsurance contracts are also determined
using the same methods as for insurance contract liabilities. In addition, the recoverability of these assets is
assessed on a periodic basis to consider whether the balance is reflective of the amounts that will ultimately be
received, taking into consideration factors such as counterparty and credit risk. Impairment is recognised where
there is objective evidence that the Company may not receive amounts due to it and these amounts can be
reliably measured.
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Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2011

2. Significant accounting policies

The significant accounling policies sel out below have been consistently applied to all periods presented in these
financial statements except for the following change in accounting policy:

e The Company has elected to early adopt AASB 2010-4 Further Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards arising from the Annual Improvements Project for amendments to AASB 101 Presentation of
Financial Statements which removed the requirement to show each item of other comprehensive income
in the statement of changes in equity and rather permit such analysis and disclosure to be shown in the
notes. This change has been retrospectively applied.

Under the Life Insurance Act 1995 (Life Act), Life business is conducted within one or more separate statutory
funds, which are distinguished from each other and from the shareholder funds. The assets of the Life business
are allocated between the policyowners and shareholder funds with all assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses
recognised in the financial statements, irrespective of whether they are policyowner or shareholder owned.

The shareholder's entitlement to monies held in the statutory funds is subject to the distribution and transfer
restrictions and other requirements of the Life Act and the Company’s constitution. The main restrictions are that
the assets in a fund can only be used to meet the liabilities and expenses of that fund, to acquire investments to
further the business of the fund, or as distributions.

Participating policyowners can receive a distribution when solvency requirements are met, while shareholders can
only receive a distribution when the higher level of capital adequacy requirements is met.

2.1. Foreign currency
Foreign currency transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the operation using
the spot exchange rates at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities at balance
date are translated into the functional currency using the spot rates of exchange current on that date. The resulting
differences on monetary items are recognised as exchange gains/losses in the financial year in which the
exchange rates difference arises. Foreign currency non-monetary assets and liabiiities that are measured in terms
of historical cost are translated using the exchange rates at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency non-
monetary assets and liabilities that are stated at fair value are translated using exchange rates at the dates the fair
value was determined.

2.2. Revenue and expense recognition
(a) Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method.

(b) Dividends and distribution income

Dividends and distribution income are recognised when the right to receive income is established.

(c) Fair value gains and losses

Fair value gains and losses from financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised as
they occeur.
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Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2011

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2. Revenue and expense recognition (continued)
(d) Premium revenue

Premium revenue relales (o risk bearing life insurance contracts. The components of premium that relate to life
investment contracts are in the nature of deposits and are recognised as a movement in policy liabilities.

Life insurance premiums with no due date are recognised as revenue on a cash received basis. Premiums with a
regular due date are recognised on an accruals basis.

(e) Fees and other revenue

Fee revenue is recognised as services are provided. The entry fee in relation to life investment contracts is
deferred and recognised over the average expected life of the investment contract. The revenue that can be
attributed to the origination service is recognised at inception.

(f) Claims expense

Insurance claims are recognised when the liability to the policyowner under the policy contract has been
established or upon notification of the insured event, depending on the type of claim.

The component of a life insurance contract claim that relates to the bearing of risks is treated as a claim expense.
Other life insurance claim amounts and all life investment contract amounts paid to policyowners are in the nature
of withdrawals and are recognised as a decrease in policy liabilities.

(g) Outwards reinsurance expense

Premiums ceded to reinsurers are recognised as an expense in accordance with the same basis as the original
contracts for which the reinsurance was purchased.

(h) Life insurance reinsurance and other recoveries revenue

Policy claims recoverable from reinsurers are recognised as revenue at the time they come into effect in
accorgance with the reinsurance treaties.

(i) Basis of expense apportionment

Life insurance expenditure has been apportioned to the different classes of business in accordance with Division 2
of Part 8 of the Life Act. The expense apportionment basis is in line with the principles set out in APRA Prudential
Standard LPS 1.04 Valuation of Policy Liabilities.

Expenses excluding investment management fees, which are directly identifiable, have been apportioned between
policy acquisition and policy maintenance on the basis of the objective when incurring each expense, and the
outcome achieved. Where allocation is not feasible between the disclosure categories, expenses have been
allocated as maintenance expenses. Expenses which are directly attributable to an individual policy or product are
allocated directly to the statutory fund within which the class of business to which that policy or product belongs.
All indirect expenses charged to profit or loss are equitably apportioned to each class of business.

Statistics such as policy counts, annual premiums, funds under management and claims payments are used to
apportion the expenses to individual life insurance and life investment products.
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Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2011

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3. Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax and is recognised in the profit or loss except to the exient
it relates to items recognised in equity or in other comprehensive income. For life insurance business. income tax
expense is determined after segregating the operations into classes of business which are taxed at different rates
and on different bases according to the rules relating to each class.

Current tax consists of the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, after any adjustments in
respect of previous years, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is determined
using tax rates {and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the reporting date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
the temporary differences can be ulilised. The tax effect of income tax losses available for carry forward are
recognised as an asset when it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which these losses
can be utilised.

For presentation purposes, deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been offset if there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and where they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on the same taxable entity.

AASB 1038 Life Insurance Contracts requires shareholder and policyowner tax to be included in income tax
expense in the profit or loss. The majority of life insurance tax is allocaied to policy liabilities and does not affect
profit atiributable to owners of the Company.

Tax consolidation

As at 30 June 2011, the Company is a wholly-owned entity in a tax consolidated group, with Suncorp Group
Limited as the head entity (Suncorp-Metway Limited at 30 June 2010).

The Company and each of its wholly-owned subsidiaries recognise the current and deferred lax amounts
applicable to the transactions undertaken by it, reasonably adjusted for certain intra group transactions, as if it
continued to be a separate taxpayer. The head entity recognises the entire tax-consolidated group's current tax
liability. Any differences, per subsidiary, between the current tax liability and any tax funding arrangement amounts
(see below) are recognised by the head entity as an equity contribution to or distribution from the subsidiary.

The head entity. in conjunction with members of the tax-consolidated group, has entered into a tax sharing
agreement and a tax funding agreement. The tax funding agreement requires wholly-owned subsidiaries to make
contributions to the head entity for current tax liabilities arising from external transactions. The contributions are
calculated as if the subsidiary was a separate taxpayer, reasonably adjusted for certain intra group transactions.
The assets and liabilities arising under the tax funding agreement are recognised as intercompany assets and
liabilities, at call.

Members of the tax consolidated group have also, via the tax sharing agreement, provided for the determination of
income tax liabilities between the entities should the head entity default on its tax payment obligations. No
amounts have been recognised in respect of this component of the agreement as this outcome is considered
remote,

2.4, Goods and services tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not
recoverable. In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or the
amount of expense.

Receivables, payables and the provision for outstanding claims are stated with the amount of GST included.

2.5. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cash at branches, cash on deposit. balances wilh the Reserve
Bank of Australia (RBA), highly liquid short-term investments and money at short call. They are measured at face

value or the gross value of the outstanding balance which is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value.
Bank overdrafts are shown within financial liabilities unless there is a right of offset.
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Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2011

2.  Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.6. Non-derivative financial assets
(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are classified as either held for trading or are designated as
such upon initial recognition. Financial assets are designated at fair value through profit or loss if the Company
manages such investments and makes purchase and sale decisions based on their fair value in accordance with
the Company's documented risk management or investment strategy. They are initially recognised on the trade
date at which the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument and are initially
measured at fair value, Transaction costs are recognised in the profit or loss as incurred. The assels are
measured at fair value each reporting date based on the gquoted market price where available. Where quoted
prices are not available. alternative valuation lechniques are used. Movements in the fair value are taken
immediately to the profit or loss. The Company's financial assets at fair value through profit or loss within its
statutory funds include: trading securities and investment securities and receivables.

(b) Loans and other receivables

Loans and other receivables within the shareholders' fund are financial assels with fixed and determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are initially recognised at fair value plus any direcily
attributable transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost [ess any accumulated impairment
losses.

(c) Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive future cash flows from the assets have expired, or
have been transferred, and the Company has transferred substantially all risk and rewards of ownership.

2.7. Derivative financial instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instruments to hedge the Company's assets and liabilities or as part of the
Company's trading and investment activities. Derivates include foreign exchange contracts, forward rate
agreements and interest rate, currency and equity swaps.

All derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on trade date and transaction costs are recognised in profit or
loss as incurred. Fair values are determined from quoted market prices where available, else discounted cash flow
models, broker and dealer price quotalions or option pricing models as appropriate.

Derivatives are used by the Company to manage interest rate, foreign exchange and equity price risk. They are
also used to a limited degree within the insurance investment portfolios where it is more efficient to use derivatives
rather than physical securities in managing investment portfolios. The use of derivatives is consistent with the
objectives of the overall investment strategies of the investment portfolios, and is one of the means by which these
strategies are implemented

The Risk Management Statements (Statements) esiablish the basis on which derivatives may be used within the
investment portfolios. The preparation and enforcement of these Statements is a critical requirement for licensed
insurers.

Derivatives will only be used by the Company for the reasons of efficiency, arbitrage and risk reduction. The
Statements and investment mandates specifically prohibit the use of derivatives for speculalive purposes or for
leveraged trading. Leverage here is defined as creating a porifolio which would have sensitivity to an underlying
economic or financial variable which is greater than could be achieved using only physical securities.

Exposure limits have been established with respect to the various asset classes. Within each asset class,
derivative exposure limits are identified in the Statements and limits have been established on daily transaction
levels. For over the counter (OTC) derivatives authorised counterparties must have a minimum credit rating
equivalent to a Standard & Poor's rating of ‘A’

The investment manager has an independent Risk Manager responsible for monitoring these positions to ensure
they do not exceed the authorities established in the investment mandate.

The use of derivatives to mitigate market risk, interest rate risk and currency risk includes the use of exchange
traded bills and bond fulures, equity index futures, OTC forward foreign exchange contracts and interest rate and
equity options.
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Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2011

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.7. Derivative financial instruments (continued)

To prevent derivatives being used as a source of gearing, all derivatives have to be wholly or partly cash covered
depending on the type of risk undertaken. Derivative restrictions are designed to either prevent gearing or to cover
unrealised and potential losses on all derivatives to guard against potential liquidity short falls. Counterparty risk
procedures are in place for OTC type derivatives.

2.8. Financial assets backing life insurance and life investment liabilities

The Company has determined that all financial assets within its statutory funds are assets backing policy liabilities.
These financial assets are designated as fair value through profit or loss as they are measured on a basis that is
consistent with the measurement of the liabilities. These financial assets include investment securities and
receivables.

2.9. Financial assets not backing life insurance and life investment liabilities

Financial assets held within the shareholder funds do not back life insurance liabilities or life investment liabilities
and include investment securities and receivables. Investment securities are designated as fair value through
profit or loss as they are managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis for internal and external
reporting in accordance with the investment strategy. Receivables are measured at amortised cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

2.10. Deferred acquisition costs

Life insurance contracts — deferred acquisition costs include the fixed and variable costs of acquiring new
business and include commissions, certain advertising and underwriting costs. These costs are implicitly deferred
through Margin on Service (MoS) accounting. The amount deferred is subject 10 an overall limit such that the
value of future profits at inception cannot be negative.

Life investment contracts — deferred acquisition costs include the variable costs of acquiring new business and
include commission costs. They are amortised in accordance with the expected earning pattern of the associated
revenue,

All other acquisition costs are expensed as incurred.

2.11. Impairment

Financial assets

Financial assets, other than those measured at fair value through profit or loss, are assessed each reporting date
to determine whether there is any objective evidence of impairment. If impairment has occurred, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down to its estimated recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised in respect of loans and other receivables measured at amortised cost when the
carrying amount of the asset exceeds the present value of its estimated discounted future cash flows calculated
based on the asset’s original effective interest rate. When impairment losses are recognised, the carrying amount
of the relevant asset or group of assets is reduced by the balance of the provision for impairment. If a subsequent
event causes the amount of the impairment loss to decrease, the impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss.

The amount necessary to bring the impairment provisions to their assessed levels, after write-offs, is charged to
profit or loss. All known bad debts are written off in the period in which they are identified. Where not previously
provided for, they are written off directly to profit or loss.
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Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2011

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.12. Non-derivative financial liabilities

There are two categories of non-derivative financial liabilities: financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
and financial liabilities carried at amortised cost. Accounting policies and descriptions of each category are
detailed below.

(a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

These liabililies are classified as either held for trading or those that are designated upon initial recognition.
Liabilities are initially recognised on trade date ai fair value with any directly attributable transaction costs
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. Fair value is determined using the offer price where available. Movements
in the fair value are recognised in the profit or loss. The Company designates the deposits and borrowings of the
statutory funds as being at fair value through profit or loss.

(b) Financial liabilities carried at amortised cost

Financial liabilities carried at amortised cost are initially measured at fair value plus any directly attributable
tfransaction costs. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
Company has designated the deposits and borrowings of the shareholders’ fund and Company as being financial
liabilities at amortised cost.

Non-derivative liabilities are derecognised when the contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired.
2.13. Policy liabilities

(a) Life Insurance contracts

Life insurance contract liabilities are calculated using the Margin on Services (MoS) methodology. Under MoS, the
excess of premium received over expected claims and expenses is recognised over the life of the contract in a
manner that reflects the pattern of risk accepted from the policyowner.

The projection method is generally used to determine life insurance contract liabilities. The net present value of
projected cash flows is calculated using best estimate assumptions about the future. When the benefits under the
life insurance contract are linked to the assets backing it, the discount rate applied is based on the expected future
earnings rate of those assets. Otherwise, a risk-free discount rate is used.

Where the accumulation method has been used, the liability is based on an unearned premium reserve, less an
explicit allowance for deferred acquisition costs, and a reserve for incurred but not reported claims. Where used,
the accumulation basis is considered to be a reasonable approximation of liabilities had they been determined on
a projection basis.

Participating policies are entitled to share in the profits that arise from participating business. This profit sharing is
governed by the Life Act and the Life Companies’ constitution. The participating policyowner profit sharing
entitlement is treated as an expense in the profit or loss.

The operating profit arising from discretionary participating contracts is allocated between shareholders and
participating policyowners by applying the MoS principles in accordance with the Life Act.

Profit allocated to participating policyowners is recognised as an increase in policy liabilities. Both the element of
this profit that has not yet been allocated to specific policyowners (i.e. unvested) and that which has been
allocated to specific policyowners by way of bonus distributions (i.e. vested) are included within life insurance
contract liabilities.

(b) Life investment contracts

A life investment contract involves both the origination of a financial instrument and the provision of investment
management services. Policy liabilities are measured at the fair value of the financial instrument component of the
contract (designated as fair value through profit or loss) plus the liability in respect of the management services
element. The management services element, including associated acquisition costs, is recognised as revenue as
services are performed.

For investment-linked products, the life investment contract liability is directly linked to the performance and value
of the assets that back them and is determined as the fair value of those asseis after tax. For fixed income
policies, the liability is determined as the net present value of expecled cash flows, subject to a minimum of
current surrender value,
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Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2011

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.13. Policy liabilities (continued)
(c) Liability adequacy test

The adequacy of the insurance liabilities is evaluated each year. The insurance contract test considers current
estimates of all contractual and related cash flows. If it is determined, using best estimate assumptions that a
shorifall exists, the shortfall is immediately recognised in the profit or loss.

2.14. Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equily.
(a) Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, determined, or publicly recommended by the directors
on or before the end of the financial year, but not distributed at reporting date. Where a dividend is declared post
reporting date but prior to the date of the financial statements, disclosure of the declaration is made in the financial
statements but no provision is made.

2.15. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the financial statements, unless the possibility of
settlement is remote, in which case no disclosure is made. If settlement becomes probable and the amount can be
reliably estimated, a provision is recognised.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the financial statements when inflows are probable. If
inflows become virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

The amount disclosed as a contingent liability or contingent asset is the best estimate of the settlement or inflow.

2.16. New accounting standards and interpretations not yet adopted

The following standard, amendments to standards and interpretations are relevant to current operations. They are
available for early adoption but have not been applied by the Company in this financial report:

. AASB 9 Financial Instruments was issued and will eventually replace AASB 139 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurements. It introduced changes in the classification and measurement of financial
assets and financial liabilities. This standard becomes mandatory for the Company’'s 30 June 2014
financial statements. The Company has not yet determined the potential effect of the new standard.

. AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement provides a definition of the term, fair value, and introduced additional
disclosure requirements. This is applicable for all assets and liabilities measured at fair value, including
non-financial assets and liabilities. This standard becomes mandatory for the Company's 30 June 2014
financial statements. The Company has not yel determined the potential effect of the new standard.

Other new standargs, amendments to standards effective for annual reporting periods after 1 July 2011 that have
not yet been early adopted, are not expected to have a significant impact to the Company.
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Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2011

3. Net policy liabilities

3.1. Life liability estimation process

Policy liabilities have been calculated in accordance with APRA Prudential Standard LPS 1.04 Valuation of Policy
Liabilities issued under Section 230A(1) of the Life Act.

For life insurance contracts, palicy liabilities are calculated in a way which allows for the proper and timely reiease
of profits over the life of the business as services are provided to policyowners and premiums are received. For life
investment contracts, policy liabilities are calculated as the fair value of liabilities in accordance with accounting
standards.

Life insurance contract liabilities are computed using slatistical or mathematical methods, which are expected to
give approximately the same resulls as if an individual liability was calculated for each contract, The computations
are made by suitably qualified personnel on the basis of recognised actuarial methods, with due regard to relevant
actuarial principles and standards. The methodology takes into account the risks and uncertainties of the particular
classes of life insurance business written.

Acluarnial reports with an effective date of 30 June 2011 were prepared in relation to policy liabilities and solvency
reserves. All reports indicated that the Appointed/Company Acluaries are satisfied as to the accuracy of the data
upon which policy liabilities have been delermined. The actuariai reports for the Company were prepared by Mr
Michael Lubke, Appointed Actuary BSc (Hons) FIAA.

The methods and profit carriers for the major policy types of life insurance contracts are as follows:

Business type m Profit carrier

Conventional Projection Participating business — bonuses
Non-participating business — expected claim payments

Investment account Projection Interest credits

Allocated pension Projection Interest credits

Lump sum risk Projection Expected claim payments

Disability income risk Projection Expected claim payments

Annuity Projection Annuity payments

Mol el s B SR 0 D R R T R B R

Investment account Projection Interest credits

Disability income risk Accumulation Not applicable

Lump sum risk Accumulation Not applicable
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Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2011

3. Net policy liabilities (continued)

3.2. Actuarial assumptions, judgements and estimates used in calculating policy liabilities

Under the projection method, estimates of policy cash flows (premiums, benefits, expenses and profit margins to
be released in fulure periods) are projected into the future. The projected profit margins are expressed as a
percentage of the relevant profit carrier. The policy liability is calculated as the net present value of these projected
cash flows. Under the accumulation method for risk business the policy liability is equal to the sum of reserves for
incurred but not reported claims, unearned premiums and open disability income claims.

The following table sets out key factors affecting the determination of the policy liabilities and the critical
assumptions and judgements made.

Basis of assumption Significant changes
since 2010

Investment Assumed earning rates are determined having regard to the asset mix ~ No change in approach.
earnings — of the investment portfolio backing the benefits, the assumed earning
participating rates for each sector, market conditions at the valuation date and tax
business on investment earnings appropriate to the class of business and asset
sector. See rates in the following table.
Investment All non-participating business uses an investment earnings and No change in approach.
earnings — non- discount rate assumption of the risk-free rate. For the Company this
participating has been determined from the government bond curve. See rates in
business the following table.

Maintenance
expenses

Inflation

Benefit indexation

Voluntary
discontinuance

Per policy expense rates are based upon expected costs to service
existing contracts in the period following the reporting date. Expense
rates vary by product line and class of business.

The inflation rate assumed takes into account the difference between
the long-term government bonds and indexed government bonds for
Australia.

3.0% (2010: 3.0%)

Where future benefits increase in line with inflation, the relevant
country’s assumed inflation rate is used.

Rates are based upon recent internal investigations. Rates may vary
by product, class of business, policy value, age and duration in force.
Allowance is also made for cash withdrawals. See rates in the following

No change in approach.

None.

None.

Moderate increases for

risk business having

regard to recent

table. experience.
Surrender values  Surrender values are determined by applying the surrender bases None.
current at the reporting date.
Rates of taxation The rates of taxation assumed are based on current income tax None.

legislation applicable to the type of product.

Mortality — Mortality rates for risk products have been determined using the Assumed rate of
individual risk standard mortality table (IA95-97) which was developed by the Institute  mortality for traditional
products of Actuaries of Australia based on Australian insured lives experience business has been
from 1995 to 1997. The Company adjustments are pre smoker/non- reduced having regard
smoker allowance. See adjustment rates in the following table. to observed experience.
Mortality — Mortality rates for annuitants have been determined using the standard ~ Assumed rate of
annuitants table IM/IF80 with adjustments for assumed future age-related annuitant mortality has

improvements. Tables IM/IF80 were developed by the Institute of
Actuaries and Faculty of Actuaries based on UK annuitant lives
experience from 1979 to 1982. See following table for applicable
adjustment rates.

Adjustments applied to the 60% and 60% factors from a base year of
1996.

decreased.
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Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2011

3. Net policy liabilities (continued)

3.2. Actuarial assumptions, judgements and estimates used in calculating policy liabilities
(continued)

Assumption Basis of assumption Significant changes
since 2010

zﬂuo"r]bldﬂy mg Disability rates on lump sum Total and Permanent Disablement (TPD) ra\lsoszl::nge " th_e s
o : : : i ption, whilst
ggjlllz:;?; ::t\::‘etg?:f?eietaseii :ﬁelrr:g:stry and population experience with assumed incidence for
; trauma has been
For trauma policies, assumed incidence rates are based on Australian ~ increased.
population statistics with adjustments to reflect Suncorp Life &
Superannuation Limited's experience and policy conditions.
Disability — Disability rates on income policies have been determined using the None.
income IAD89-93 table with adjustments to reflect experience. IAD89-93 was
developed by the Institute of Actuaries of Australia based on Australian
industry experience from 1989 to 1993.
Future 2 ;
supportable Future bonus rates and interest credits assumed are those supported No change in approach.

by the policy liabilities and the assumed future experience, including
allowance for the shareholder’s right to participate in distributions.
Using these rates the net present value of expected future cash flows
equals the value of assets supporting the business.

bonuses and
interest credits to
participating
policies
For participating whole of life and endowment business, the Company's
policy is to set bonus rates such that, over long periods, the returns to
policyowners (as a group, but not necessarily individually) are
commensurate with the investment returns achieved on relevant
assets, together with other sources of profit arising from this business.
For participating investment account business, crediting rates are set
such that over long periods policyowners (as a group, but not
necessarily individually) receive full investment earnings on their
accounts less a deduction of explicit fees and charges. Distributions
are split between policyowners and shareholder with the valuation
allowing for the shareholder to share in distributions at the maximum
allowable rate of 20%.

Assumption 2011 2010
% %

investment eamings pre-tax for participating 6.5-7.6 6.2-74
business

Investment earnings pre-tax for non-participating 4.7 —6.1 42-56
business

Voluntary discontinuance 4-30 4-30
Mortality — individual risk products adjustment. 70 -170 70-170
Mortality — annuitants M =60 M =80
(M = Male, F = Female) F=60 F=70
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Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for \he year ended 30 June 2011

3. Net policy liabilities (continued)

3.3. Other requirements

The Life Act requires companies to meet prudential standards of solvency. The solvency requirements are
determined in accordance with APRA Prudenlial Standard LPS 2.04 Solvency Standard, as required under the
Life Act. For the purposes of note 28, minimum termination values have been determined in accordance with
APRA Prudential Standards LPS 4.02 Minimum Surrender Values and Paid Up Values and LPS 2,04,

3.4. Sensitivity analysis

The Company conducts sensitivity analyses to quantify the exposure to risk of changes in the key underlying
variables that affect profits. The valuations included in the reported resulls and the Company’s best estimate of
future performance, are calculated using certain assumptions about these vanables. The movement in any key
variable will impact the performance and net assets of the Company and as such represents a risk.

Impact of movement in underlying variable

Maintenance expense An increase in the level or inflationary growth of expenses over assumed levels would
decrease profit and shareholder equity.

Mortality, TPD and For lump sum risk business other than lifetime annuities, greater mortality, TPD or trauma rates

Trauma rates would lead to higher levels of claims occurring, increasing associated claim cost and therefore
reducing profit and shareholder equity. For lifetime annuities greater mortality rates would lead
to a shorter duration of regular payments, and therefore increasing profit and shareholder
equity.

Morbidity rates (disability The cost of health-related claims depends on both the incidence of policyowners becoming

income) disabled and the duration which they remain disabled. Higher than expected incidence and
longer durations would increase claim costs, reducing profit and shareholders equity.

Discontinuance An increase in discontinuance rates at earlier durations has a negative effect, reducing profit
and shareholder equity, as it affects the ability to recover acquisition expenses and
commissions.

For life insurance contracts which are accounted for under LPS 1.04, amounts recognised in the current period are
unlikely to be sensitive to changes in variables even if those changes may have an impact on future profit margins,
except in cases where the product is in loss recognition or goes into loss recognition.

The following table illustrates the impact in the current period of changes in key assumptions as at 30 June 2011.
The change in liability and profit (loss) are shown net and gross of reinsurance.

Change in insurance

Variable Change ™ contract liabilities Profit/(loss)
before tax after tax'?
(net) (gross) (nst) (gross)
$m $m $m $m
Maintenance expenses + 10% increase 0.1 0.1 (0.1) (0.1)
Mortality and lump sum + 10% increase (0.4) 0.2 0.3 (0.1)
morbidity
Morbidity — disability income  + 10% increase in 0.2 0.3 (0.2) (0.2)
incidence and decrease
in recovery rales
Discontinuance rates + 10% increase - - - -
Notes

(1) Sensitivity changes are relative to current best estimate assumptions.
(2) Change in profit/(loss) after tax is the same as change in equity.
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Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2011

3. Net policy liabilities (continued)

3.4, Sensitivity analysis (continued)
The table below illustrates the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions from 30 June 2010 to 30 June 2011.

Effect on future profit

margins
Assumption Category (shareholder) Effect on policy liabilities
increase/(decrease) increase/(decrease)
$m $m
Discount and earning rate (risk business) " . 0.2
Discount and earning rate (participating business) 3.0 -
Mortality income (2.0) 2.5
Lapse and surrender rates (1.7) -
Maintenance expenses (5.8) 04
Other changes (6.1) -

Notes
(1) Effects for risk business are shown gross of tax (the changes in the components of policy liability note are net of tax).

We note that part of the effect of the change in variables above may have been absorbed into profit margins
implicit within policy liabilities, and is therefore not apparent from the table above.
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Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2011

4. Risk management and financial instruments

4.1. Risk management objectives and structure

The Board and management recognise that effective risk management is considered to be critical to the
achievement of the Suncorp Group Limited and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) objectives. The Board Risk
Committee has delegated authority from the Board to carry out the oversighl of the adequacy and effectivensss of
the risk management frameworks and processes within the Group.

An Enterprise Risk Management Framework (ERMF) is in place for the Group. [t is subject to an annual review,
updated for material changes as they occur and is approved by the Board Risk Committee. The ERMF comprises:

o the Group’s risk appetite framework and its link to strategic business and capital plans

o accountabilities and governance arrangements for the management of risk within the Three Lines of
Defence model

D the Group’s Policy and Compliance Frameworks

. the risk management process.

The Three Lines of Defence model of accountability involves:

Line of Defence Responsibility of Accountable for

First — Manage risk and All business functions For identifying and managing the risks inherent in their

comply with Group and staff operations; ensuring compliance with all legal and regulatory
frameworks, policies and requirements and Group policies; and promptly escalating any
risk appetite significant actual and emerging risks for management attention.
Second — Independent Group Chief Risk Officer,  To design, implement and manage the ongoing maintenance of
functions own and monitor Line of Business Chief Group risk frameworks & related policies; advise and partner
the application of risk Risk Officers, risk with the business in design and execution of risk frameworks
frameworks, and measure management staff, and and practices; develop, apply and execute Line of Business risk
and report on risk risk policyowners frameworks that are consistent with Group for the respective
performance and business areas; and facilitate the reporting of the

compliance appropriateness and quality of risk management.

Third - Independent Board Audit Committee, Internal audit, along with the Board Audit Committee decides the
assurance over internal internal and external level and extent of independent testing required to verify the
controls and risk auditors efficacy of internal controls; validates the overall risk framework;
management practices and provides assurance that the risk management practices are

functioning as intended.

In addition to the accountabilities as described above, the Senior Leadership Team, consisting of the Group Chief
Executive Officer and all Group Executives, provide executive oversight and direction-setting across the Group’s
internal conirol environment and the Group’s risk management frameworks. Within risk parameters set by the
Board, the Senior Leadership Team approves principles, policies, limits, frameworks and processes used by the
Group to identify, assess, monitor and control/mitigate risk.

The Company has an Assel and Liability Committee (ALCO). The ALCO has responsibility for establishing,
managing and enforcing an effective asset and liability risk framework which optimises the long-term refurns
achieved by the asset portfolios within any risk appetite or parameters established by the relevant Board.

The Company is subject to APRA regulation and consequently prepares Risk Management Strategies and policies
which are approved by APRA and the Board. These policies are consistent with the Australian Standard on Risk
Management (AS 4360) as well as meeting Life Prudential Standard LPS 220 Risk Management.
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4, Risk management and financial instruments (continued)

4.1. Risk management objectives and structure (continued)

The key risks addressed by the ERMF are defined below.

T e R P s - e S

Counterparty Risk The risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations in accordance with agreed terms.
(Credit risk)

Liquidity risk The risk that the Company will be unable to service its cash flow obligations today or in the
future.
Market risk The risk of unfavourable changes in foreign exchange rates, interest rates, equity prices, credit

spreads, commodity prices, and market volatilities.

Asset & liability isk ~ The risk to earnings and capital from mismatches between assets and liabilities with varying
maturity and repricing profiles and from mismatches in term.

Insurance risk The risk of financial loss and the inability to meet liabilities due to inadequate or inappropriate
insurance product design, pricing, underwriting, concentration risk, reserving, claims
management or reinsurance management.

Operational risk The risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or
from external events.

Compliance risk The risk of legal or regulatory sanctions, financial loss, or loss to reputation which the Company
may suffer as a result of its failure to comply with all applicable regulations, codes of conduct
and good practice standards.

Strategic risk The risk of loss arising from uncertainty about the future operating environment, including
reputation, industry, economic and regulatory environment, branding, crisis management, and
partners and suppliers.

The Company is exposed to mainly the following categories of market risks:

Categories of Definition
market risk

Foreign exchange The risk of an asset or liability's value changing unfavourably due to changes in currency
(FX) risk exchange rates.

Interest rate risk The risk of loss of current and future earnings and unfavourable movements in the value of
interest bearing assets and liabilities from changes in interest rates.

Equity risk The risk of loss in current and future earnings and unfavourable movement in the value of
investment in equity instruments from adverse movements in equity prices.

Credit spread risk Credit spread is the difference in yield due to difference in credit quality. This is the risk of loss in
current and future earnings and unfavourable movement in the value of investments from
changes in the credit spread as determined by capital market sentiment or factors affecting all
issuers in the market and not necessarily due to factors specific to an individual issuer.
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4. Risk management and financial instruments (continued)
4.2. Insurance risk management

4.2.1. Policies for mitigating insurance risk

The risk management aclivities include prudent underwriting, pricing, acceptance and management of risk,
together with claims management and reserving.

The key palicies in place 1o mitigate insurance risk include the following:

. the setting and adherence to underwriting guidelines that determine policies and procedures for acceptance
of risk

. the selting of formal claims acceptance limits and the regular review and updating of claims experience data

. the reduction in the concentration of insurance risk through diversification

. the Company enters into reinsurance and ceding arrangements to preserve capital and manage earnings
volatility from large individual or catastrophic claims

. the maintenance of appropriate actuarial reserves including reserves to cover claims incurred but not yet
reported

. the identification and consistent monitoring against budget projections derived from the actuarial projections

models of external variables which impact claims cash flow such as mortality and morbidity experience,
claims frequency and persistency

. managing of risk exposures using various analyses and valuation techniques, including stochastic
modelling, to calculate the capital required under adverse risk scenarios

. the monitoring of natural disasters such as floods, storms, earthquakes ang other catastrophes. Exposures
to such risks are monitored using catastrophe models.

In addition, the Board receives Financial Condition Reponts from the Appointed Actuary who also provides advice
in relation to premium and reinsurance arrangements in accordance with APRA Prudential Standards.

Concentration of insurance risk is mitigated through diversification over classes of insurance business, the use of
reinsurer coverage and ensuring there is an appropriate mixture of individual and Group insurance business split
between mortality, morbidity and annuity benefit payments. Catastrophe insurance is also purchased to ensure
that any accumulation of losses from one area is protected.

Exposure to risk of large claims for individual lives is managed through the use of surplus reinsurance
arrangements whereby the Company's maximum exposure to any individual life is capped. Concentrations of risk
by product type are managed through monitoring of the Company’s in-force life insurance business and the mix of
new business written each year.

A product pricing and re-rating process ensures that any cross subsidies between insurance rates for groups of
policyowners of different sex and age are minimised such that profitability is not materially impacted by changes to
the age and sex profile of the in-force business.
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4. Risk management and financial instruments (continued)

4.2. Insurance risk management (continued)

4.2.2. Terms and conditions of insurance business

The nalure and terms of the insurance contracts written is such that certain external variables can be identified on
which related cash flows for claim payments depend.

The table provides an overview of {he key variables upon which the timing and uncertainly of future cash flows of
the various life insurance and investment contracts issued by the Company depend.

Type of contract Details of contract workings Nature of compensation for | Key variables affecting the
claims timing and uncertainty of
future cash flows

Long-term non-
participating insurance
contracts with fixed and
guaranteed terms (Term
Life and Disability)

Conventional life
insurance contracts with
discretionary
participating benefits
(Endowment and Whole
of Life)

Investment account
contracts with
discretionary
participating features

Unit Linked Investment
Contracts

Lifetime Annuity

Guaranteed benefits paid on
death, ill health or maturity which
are fixed and are not at the
discretion of the issuer.

These policies combine life
insurance and savings. The
policyowner pays a regular
premium and receives the
specified sum assured plus any
accruing bonuses on death or
maturity. The sum insured is
specified at inception and
guaranteed. Reversionary
bonuses are added annually,
which once added (vested) are
guaranteed. A further terminal
bonus may be added on
surrender, death or maturity.

The gross value of premiums
received is invested in the
investment account with fees and
premiums for any associated
insurance cover being deducted
from the account balance. Interest
is credited regularly.

The gross value of premiums
received is invested in units and
the policyowner investment
account is the value of the units.
Investment management fees are
deducted from policyowners
annually based on the average
value of funds under
management.

In exchange for an initial single
premium, these policies provide a
guaranteed regular income for the
life of the insured.

Benefits, defined by the
insurance contract, are not
directly affected by the
performance of underlying
assets or the performance of
the contracts as a whole.

Operating profit arising from
these contracts is allocated
80:20 between the
policyowners and
shareholders in accordance
with the Life Act. The amount
allocated to policyowners is
held as an unvested policy
liability until it is distributed to
specific policyowners as
bonuses.

The payment of the account
balance is guaranteed.
Operating profit arising from
these contracts is allocated
between the policyowners and
shareholders in accordance
with the Life Act. The amount
allocated to policyowners is
held as an unvested policy
liability until it is distributed to
specific policyowners as
interest credits.

The investment return is equal
to the earmings on assets
backing the investment
contracts less any applicable
management fees.

The amount of guaranteed
regular income is set at
inception of the policy,
including any indexation.

Mortality, morbidity, lapses,
expenses and market
earning rates on the assets
backing the liabilities.

Mortality, surrenders,
expenses and market
earning rates on the assets
backing the liabilities.

Surrenders, expenses and
market eaming rates on the

assets backing the

liabilities.

Market risk, expenses and

withdrawals.

Longevity, expenses and
market earning rates on
assets backing liabilities.
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4. Risk management and financial instruments (continued)
4.2. Insurance risk management (continued)
4.2.3. Credit risk

Life is exposed to and manages the following key sources of credil risk.

Key sources of credit risk | How are these managed

Investments in financial Financial instruments are only dealt on recognised exchanges and over the counter contracts.

instruments The counterparties to over the counter contracts are limited to companies with primarily
investment grade credit ratings from a recognised credit rating agency and are normally banks
operating in Australia. Credit management (credit rating and credit limit controls) policies are in
place to limit exposure to any one counterparty as a proportion of the investment portfolio.

Reinsurance recoveries Credit risk with respect to reinsurance programs is minimised by placement of cover with a
number of reinsurers with strong credit ratings.

The carrying amount of the relevant asset classes in the statement of financial position represents the maximum
amount of credit exposures, except for derivatives. The fair value of derivatives recognised in the statement of
financial position represents the current risk exposure, but not the maximum risk exposure. The nominal value and
fair value of derivatives are illustrated in note 5.

The following table provides information regarding credit risk exposure of the Company's financial assets,
classified according to Standargd & Poor’s counterparty credit ratings. AAA is the highest possible rating. Rated
assets falling outside the range of AAA to BBB are classified as non-investment grade.

Credit Rating
investment
Non Linked
investment Other Not  Business

AAA AA A BBB grade Rated  NotRated!”  Total

$m $m $m $m $m $m $m
2014
Cash and cash equivalents 771 23 225 - - - 283.7 385.6
Interest bearing financial assets at fair
value through profilor loss 1,031.3 3034 158.5 149 - - 3108 18189
Loans, advances and other receivables - - - - - 1217 370 158.7
Gross policy liabilities ceded under
reinsurance - 51.0 273 - - - - 783
Derivative financial instruments - - 3.1 - - - - 3.1

1,108.4 356.7 2114 14.9 - 121.7 6315 24446

2010
Cash and cash equivalents - 141 12.3 B - 4.5 3112 3421
Interest bearing financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss 6330 381.7 2174 1.7 - 1106 2032 16478
Loans, advances and other receivables - 0.1 - - - 840 278 1119
Gross policy liabilittes ceded under
reinsurance - 51.1 417 - - - - 92.8
Derivative inancial instruments - - 76 - - - - 76

6330 4470 279.0 117 . 1891 8322 22020
Notes

(1) Forinvestment-linked business, the fiability to policyowners is tinked to the performance and value of the assets that back
those liabilities. The shareholder has ne direct exposure to any credit risk in those assets.
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4. Risk management and financial instruments (continued)
4.2. Insurance risk management (continued)
4.2.3 Credit risk (continued)

The following table provides information regarding the carrying value of financial assets that have been impaired
and the ageing of those that are pasl due but not impaired at the balance date. An amount is considered to be
past due when a contractual payment falls overdue by one or more days. When an amount is classified as past
due, the entire balance is disclosed in the past due analysis. For investment-linked business, the liability to
policyowners is linked to the performance and value of the assets that back those liabilities. The shareholder has
no direct exposure to any credit risk in those assets and the table below does not include any financial assets
backing investment-linked business.

Past due but not impaired

Neither
past due
nor 6-12 >12
impaired 0-3 mths 3-6 mths mths mths Impaired Total

$m My $m $m $m Sm $m
2011
Premiums outstanding - 121 - - - - 12.1
Investment revenue receivabie 88.5 - - - - - 88.5
Reinsurance recoveries receivable 7.7 7.0 35 - - - 18.2
Gross policy liabilities ceded under reinsurance 78.3 - - - - - 78.3
Other 25.8 - - - - - 25.8

200.3 19.1 35 - - - 2229
2010
Premiums outstanding . 121 - - - - 121
Investment revenue receivable 0.2 - - - - - 0.2
Invesiment settiements 573 - - - - - 57.3
Reinsurance recoveries receivable 4.3 8.5 01 - - - 10.9
Gross policy liabilities ceded under reinsurance 928 - - - - - 928
Cther 7.4 - - - - - 174

172.0 18.6 0.1 - - - 190.7

The Company does not expect any counterparties to fail to meet their obligations given their credit ratings and
therefore does not require collateral or other security to support credit risk exposures.
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4. Risk management and financial instruments (continued)
4.2. Insurance risk management (continued)
4.2.4. Liquidity risk

To ensure payments are made when they fall due, the Company has the following key facilities and arrangements
in place to mitigate liquidity risks:

e investment portfoclio mandates provide sufficient cash deposits to meet day-to-day obligations

o regularity of premiums received provides subsiantial liquidity to meet claim payments and associated
expenses as they arise

» flexibility in invesiment strategies implemented for investment management to provide sufficient liquidity to
meet claim payments as they fall due, based on actuarial assessments.

The following table summarises the maturity profite of the Company's financial liabilities based on the remaining
undiscounted contractual obligations. !t also includes the maturity profile for life insurance and life investment
contract policy liabilities based on the discounted estimated timing of net cash outflows.

Carrying  1yearor 1t05 QOver 5 Investment Totai cash
amount less years years No term Linked " flows

$m $m $m $m $m $m $m
2011
Amounts due to reinsurers 4.6 46 - - - - 4.6
Trade cceditors and accrued expenses 751 751 - - - - 751
Investment setlements 8.0 6.0 - - - 2.0 8.0
Deposits and short term borrowings 4.7 47 - - - - 47
Policyclaims in process of settlement 295 295 - - - - 295
Premium in advance 31 31 - - - - 341
Insurance contract policy habihties @ 1,7794 208.1 683.0 888.3 . & 17794
Investment contract policy tiabilities 1,498.3 47 - - - 14936 1498.3
Unvested policy owner benefits 365.5 - - - 365.5 - 365.5

3,768.2 3358 683.0 888.3 3655 14956 3,768.2
2010
Amounts due to reinsurers 5.1 5.1 - - - - 51
Trade creditors and accrued expenses 36.7 36.7 - - - - 36.7
Investment seilements 05 0.5 - - - - 05
Deposits and short term borrowings 18.2 18.2 18.2
Policy claims in process of settlement 195 195 - - - - 195
Premium in advance 32 3.2 - - - - 3.2
Insurance contract policy liabilities @ 1,690.7 208.7 650.9 831.1 - - 1,690.7
Investment contract policy liabilities 1,527.0 341 - - - 1,5238 1,527.0
Unwested policy owner benefits 386.5 - - - 386.5 - 386.5

36874 295.0 650.9 831.1 386.5 1,523.8 3,687.4
Notes

(1) For investment-linked business the liability to policyowners is linked to the performance and value of the assets that back
those liabilities. The shareholder has no direct exposure to any risk in those assets. Therefore the tables in this section show
the policyowner liability separately without any maturity profile analysis.

(2) This table shows the estimated timing of future net cash outflows resulting from insurance contract liabilities. This includes
estimated future surrenders, death/disability claims and maturity benefits, offset by expected future premiums or contributions
and reinsurance recoveries. All values are discounted to the current date using the assumed future investment earning rate for
each product.
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4. Risk management and financial instruments (continued)
4.2. Insurance risk management (continued)
4.2.5. Market risk

Market risk in life insurance business arises from mismatches between asset returns and guaranteed liability
returns, adverse movements in market prices affecting fee income on investment-linked policies and from returns
obtained from the investment of shareholders’ capital held in each life company.

Management of market risk is most critical for products which involve the investment of significant amounts of
money to meet fulure liabilities and where the returns on those assets either accrue to the shareholder or are not
necessarily able to be passed on to policyowners in a limely manner. This includes, for example. assets backing
disability income reserves for open claims and participating business. For some non-participating insurance
products, such as unit-linked products, market risks are passed on to the policyowner, although as noted, the
shareholder’s fee revenue may be adversely affected by market falls.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The statutory funds of the Company invest in overseas assets. In the investment-linked funds any investment
returns, whether positive or negative, are passed on to the policyowners. Various guarantees are provided by the
non-investment-linked statutory funds, principally in relation to capital and declared interest. The relevant statutory
funds maintain reserves in accordance with APRA Prudential Standards to meet the risk associated with
diminution of value associated wilh foreign exchange risk.

The Company invests a portion of investment assets in global equities with foreign currency exposure managed
by entering into forward foreign exchange and futures contracts. The Company also invests in several Group
related Trusts who enter into forward foreign exchange and future contracts to aim to provide capital appreciation.

The Company's exposure to foreign exchange risk at balance date is shown in the following sensitivity analysis.
This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. The movements in
foreign exchange rate used in the sensitivity analysis for 2011 has been revised to reflect updated assessment of
the reasonable possible changes in foreign exchange rate over the next twelve months given renewed
observations and experience in the investment markets during the financial year.

2011 2010
Profit Profit
Exposure Movement  {loss) Exposure Movement  (loss)
atJun-11 invarlable after tax'" Equity atJun-10 invariable aftertax!” Equity
$m % $m $m $m % $m $m
Euro 44 1 +15 4.0 - 374 +10 24
15 (5.4) . -10 (2.9) .
GBP 21.0 +15 19 - 18.5 +10 12 -
15 (2.5) - 10 (14) .
JPY 215 +15 19 - 25.9 +10 1.8 -
15 (26) A -10 (2.0 .
ush 122.8 +15 111 - 118.0 +10 6.8 -
-18 (15.0) % -10 (10.0) -
Other - +15 - - 05 +10 (0.0) -
-18 - - - -10 0.0

Notes

(1) After tax impact on profit/(loss) using corporate tax rate of 30%. Actual afler tax impact for life insurance business may
differ.
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4, Risk management and financial instruments (continued)
4.2, Insurance risk management (continued)
4.2.5. Market risk (continued)

(b) Interest rate risk

Inlerest rale risk exposure arises mainly from invesiment in interest-bearing securities. Interest rate risk arises in
respect of financial assets held in the shareholders’ funds and the life statutory funds over liabilities. This is
combined with an economic mismatch between the timing of payments to life insurance and life investment
contract holders and the duration of the assets held in the statutory funds to back these liabilities. Where the
liability to the investment contract holder is directly linked to the value of assets held to back that liability there is
no residual interest rate exposure to the shareholder. Accordingly, investment-linked business is excluded from
the analysis below.

The sensitivity of profit or loss after tax and equity reserves to movements in interest rates in relation to interest-
bearing financial assets held at the balance date is shown in the table below. It is assumed that all residual
exposures for the shareholder after tax are included in the sensitivity analysis, that the percentage point change
occurs at the reporting dale and lhere are concurrent movements in interest rates and parallel shifts in the yield
curves. The movements in interest rate used in the sensitivity analysis for 2011 has been revised to reflect
updated assessment of the reasonable possible changes in interesl rate over the next twelve months given
renewed observations and experience in the investment markets during the financial year.

2011 2010
Profit Profit
Exposure Movement (loss) Exposure Movement (loss)
atJun-11 invariable after tax'” Equity atJun-10 invariable after tax!" Equity
$m % $m $m $m % $m $m
Interest bearing investment assets 15107 +15 (13.9) = 14720 +2 (10.4)
-0.6 5.5 - -2 104
Loans and advances 142 +15 0.1 - 14.9 +2 0.2
-0.6 0.1) - -2 0.2)
Dernative financial instruments 3.1 +1.5 0.0 - 76 +2 (0.2)
06 (0.0) . 2 0.2

Notes

(1) After tax impact on profit/(loss) using corporate tax rate of 30%. Actual after tax impact for life insurance business may
differ.

(c) Equity risk

The Company has exposure to equity risk from equity investments in its investment portfolios. Equity risk is
managed by incorporating a diverse holding of Australian and overseas equities (whether direct or through
unitised vehicles) and through the controlled use of derivative financial instruments. The table below presents a
sensitivity analysis showing the impact on profitl or loss and equity reserves for listed equity price movements as at
the balance date with all other variables remaining constant. The price risk in relation to unlisted securities is
immaterial in terms of the possible impact on profit or loss and equity reserves have not been included in the
sensitivity analysis.

2011 2010
Profit Profit
Exposure Movement  (loss} Exposure Movement (loss)
atJun-11  invariable aftertax'® Equity atJun-10 invariable aftertax™ Equity
$m % $m $m $m % $m $m

Australian equities 636.0 +20 89.0 - 586.0 +25 102.6 -
-20 (89.0) - -25 (102 8) -
International equities 208.0 +20 29.0 - 2710 +25 47.4 -
20 (29.0) . -25 (47 4) -

Notes

(1) After tax impact on profit/(loss) using corporate tax rate of 30%. Actual after tax impact for life insurance business may
differ.
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4. Risk management and financial instruments (continued)

4.3. Fair value hierarchy

Financial assets and liabilities that are recognised and measured at fair value are categorised by a hierarchy
which identifies the most significant input used in the valuation methodology.

o Level 1 —derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial instruments
e Level 2 — derived from other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the financial

instruments, either directly or indirectly

e Level 3 —fair value measurement is not based on observable market data.

30 June 2011

Financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss
Derivative financial assets

Life investment contract liabilities

30 June 2010

Financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss
Derivative financial assets

Life investment contract liabilities

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$m $m $m $m
1,5665.3 1,985.2 3.0 3,553.5
- 3 - 3.1
1,565.3 1,988.3 3.0 3,556.6
- (1,498.3) - (1,498.3)
1,565.3 490.0 3.0 2,058.3
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$m $m $m $m
1,145.0 2,424.5 3.0 3,672.5
- 7.6 7.6
1,145.0 2,432.1 3.0 3,580.1
- (1,527.0) (1,527.0)
1,145.0 905.1 3.0 2,053.1

There have been no transfers in either direction (leve! 1 to level 2 ang vice versa) during the year ended 30 June

2011 (2010:nil).

The Company's exposure to Level 3 financial instruments are restricted to an insignificant component of the
portfolios to which they belong. such that any change in the assumptions used to value the instruments to a
reasonably possible alternative do not have a material effect on the portfolio balance or the Company's results.

2011 2010
Inestment  Investment
Securities Securities
Financial assets $m $m
Balance at the beginning of the financial year 3.0 98.6
Total gains or losses included in profit or loss for:

Life insurance investment (loss) revenue - 2.0
Transfers out of level 3 - (72.3)
Purchases - 14.3
Sales - {39.6)
Balance at the end of the financial year 3.0 3.0
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5. Derivative financial instruments

Less than one year
Total derivative exposure

2011
Exchange rate related contracts
Forward exchange contracts
Interest rate related contracts
Interest rate swaps
Interest rate futures
Equity contracts
Equity fulures

2010
Exchange rate related contracts
Forward exchange contracts
Interest rate related contracts
Interesi rate swaps
Interest rate futures
Equity contracts
Equity futures

Notional Principal

Amount
2010

2011
$m

396.6

375.2

396.6

375.2

Face value Fair value

$m

226.3

188.5
(44.6)

26.4

23

0.4

0.1)

0.5

396.6

3.1

226.8

142.0
(28.8)

35.2

2.8
0.1

(2.3)

375.2

7.6
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6. Premiums

Direct premiums

Direct consideration for deferred annuities:
Policy conwversions

Total premium received or receivable

Premiums recognised as a deposit or change in

policy liabilities (note 19(b),(c))

Total premium revenue

7. Investment revenue

Interest, dividend and similar revenue sourced from:

Equity securities
Debt securities
Property

Other

Investment gains sourced from:
Equity securities
Debt securities
Property
Other

Total investment revenue

2011 2010
$m m
442.0 548.4

47.7 1,708.8
489.7 2,257.2

(288.9) (2,045.2)

200.8 212.0
2011 2010
$m $m
98.2 46.2
110.0 115.0
20.5 56
1.3 0.7
230.0 167.5
53.7 97.2
51 64.5
8.0 18.7
40.6 14.5
107.4 194.9
337.4 362.4
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8. Revenue from operating activities

2011 2010
$m $m
Revenue
Premium revenue (note 6) 200.8 212.0
Investmenl revenue including realised and unrealised gains
and losses:
Equity 151.9 1434
Debt 11561 178.5
Property 28.5 24.3
Other net investment revenue incluging realised and unrealised
gains and (losses) 41.9 15.2
Total investment revenue (note 7) 337.4 362.4
Fees 46 264
Delerred fees written back (note 33) - 12.9
Total fee revenue 4.6 383
Profit on sale of management nghts (note 33) - 13.8
Total other revenue 4.6 53.1
Reinsurance recoweries 45.6 398.5
Total revenue 588.4 667.0
9. Claims
2011 2010
$m $m
Death and disability claims (145.4) (141.2)
Maturities (17.3) (52.9)
Annuities @47.1)  (77.2)
Sumenders and terminations (394.4) (467.9)
Policy conversions (47.7) (1,708.8)
(651.9) (2,448.0)
Ciaims recognised as a change in gross policy
liabilities (note 19(b),(c)) 477.0 2,282.2
Total claims expense (174.9) (165.8)
Interim and temminal bonuses paid, included in
total claims paid or payable (3.6) 4.3)
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10. Operating expenses

2011 2010
$m $m
Policy acquisition expenses:

Commission (3.8) (5.0)

Other (12.3) (6.9)
Policy maintenance expenses:

Commission (7.6) (5.5)

Other (17.8) (39.1)
Acaquisition cost written-off (note 33) (0.5) (29.3)
Amortisation charged to statement of comprehensive income - 3.7)
Investment management expenses (7.4) (10.3)

Total administration expenses - life insurance aclivities (49.4) (99.8)
Amortisation of non-life deferred acquisition costs (2.4) (1.8)
Administration expenses - non-life insurance activties (2.2) -
Total operating expenses (54.0) (101.7)
11. Operating results
2011 2010
$m $m
Profit rom operating activities before income tax expense has been
arrived at after charging the following ilems:
Employee expenses (9.8) (7.7)
Total employee expenses (9.8) a.7)
Occupancy costs
Office rental (0.2) (0.8)
Other (0.1) (3.2)
Total occupancy costs (0.3) (3.8)
Other expenses
Communications (0.6) (2.6)
Technology (0.1) (5.2
Financial (0.6) (8.1)
Marketing (0.3) (6.8)
Client senice charges - (2.4)
Intra group expenses (17.8) (16.4)
Other (0.2) (1.2)
Total other (19.6) (42.7)

All employees of the Company are employed by a related entity and these associated costs along with other
related expenses are recharged to the Company through intra group expenses.
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12. Taxation

(a) Income tax expense

Recognised in the profit or loss
Current tax expense

Current year

Adjustments for prior years

Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences

Total income tax expense

Numerical reconciliation between income tax
expense and pre-tax net profit

Profit before tax
Income tax using the domestic corporation rate of 30%
Increase in income tax expense due to:

Income tax offsets and credits

Other

Under (over) provision in prior years
Income tax expense (credit) on pre-tax net profit

2011 20170

$m $m
41.6 20.7
(1.1) 0.9
40.5 21.6
5.6 18.7
46.1 40.3
86.0 08.5
25.8 29.5
z ©0.1)
19.9 11.0
45.7 40.4
0.4 (0.1)
46.1 40.3

Income tax expense includes an amount of $46.4 million (2010: $40.2 million) aftributable to the life insurance
company statutory funds. The income tax expense is partly determined on a product basis and parlly determined
on a profit basis. The income tax expense has been determined after aggregating various classes of business,
each with different tax rates. The rates of taxation applicable to the taxable income of significant classes of

business are as follows:

Class of business

Complying superannuation business "
Ordinary class of business
Shareholder funds

Annuity and pension business
Notes

@

(1) Includes Virtual Pooled Superannuation Trust (VPST)

(2) Segregaled Exempt Assets (SEA)

2011 2010
% %
15 15
30 30
30 30
Exempt Exempt
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12. Taxation (continued)
(a) Income tax expense (continued)

Basis of income tax apportionment

A notional income tax expense is calculated for each product as if the product was invested within a sland-alone
statutory fund. The difference between this and the actual tax expense is apportioned to products having regard
to their contribution to the difference.

(b) Current tax liabilities

In accordance with the tax consolidation legislation, Suncorp Group Limited as the head entity of the Australian
tax-consolidated group has assumed the current lax liability initially recognised by the members of the tax-
consolidated group.

(c) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

Assets Liabilities Net

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

$m $m $m $m $m $m
Company
Intangible assets - - 1.1 1.8 (1.1) (1.8)
Other investments 8.9 15.6 - - 8.9 15.6
Deferred revenue - - - - - -
Other 1.7 1.3 - - 1.7 1.3
Tex assets/(liabilities) 10.6 16.9 11 1.8 9.5 151
Set off of tax (1.1) (1.8) (1.1) {1.8) - -
Tax assets/(liabilities) 9.5 15.1 - - 9.5 15.1

(d) The Tax Laws Amendment (Taxation of Financial Arrangements) Act 2009 (TOFA legislation)

Compliance with the TOFA legislation is mandatory for the tax consolidated group for tax years beginning on or
after 1 July 2010. The Group has accepted the default method of accruals or realisation and has not made any
elections regarding transitional financial arrangements or other elective timing methods. As a result, there have
been no material impacts on the Company's financial statements upon adoption of the TOFA legislation.
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13. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank
Cash held indirectly through unit trusts
Other money market placements

14, Other financial assets

Equity security investments
Unit trusts
Total equities

Debt security investments

Interest bearing securities
Private sector
Fixed interest

Loans and advances:
Loans on policies
Non-forfeiture loans

Unit trusts

Total debt

Property investments
Unit trusts

Total property

Other investments

Total financial assets

Expected to be realised within 12 months
Expected to be realised in more than 12 months

2011 2010
$m $m

3.8 107.3
125.7 45 1
256.1 189.7
385.6 342.1

2011 2010

$m $m

1,508.3 1,684.9
1,508.3 1,684.9
14.7 29
28.0 -
4.7 5.0
9.5 9.1
1,779.3 1,652.3
1,836.2 1,669.3
209.8 218.9
209.8 218.9
243 7.0
3,556.6 3,580.1
2,495.6  2,595.6
1,061.0 984.5
3,5656.6 3,580.1
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15. Receivables

2011 2010
$m $m
Owing from related parties
Tax related 0.5 4.7
Other 4.5 10.7
5.0 15.4
Reinsurance recoweries receivable 18.2 10.9
Investment income accrued 88.5 57.5
Other debtors 20.7 1.9
132.4 85.7
Expected to be realised within 12 months 132.4 85.4
Expected to be realised in more than 12 months - 0.3
132.4 85.7
16. Deferred acquisition costs
2011 2010
$m $m
Deferred acquisition costs at beginning of financial year 6.1 41.0
Acquisition costs deferred (1.4) 1.9
Acaquisition costs written-off (note 33) (0.5) (29.3)
Amortisation charged to statement of comprehensive income (0.5) (7.5)
Deferred acquisition costs al end of financial year 3.7 6.1
Expected to be realised within 12 months 3.7 2.2
Expected to be realised in more than 12 months - 3.9
3 6.1
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17. Payables

Policy claims in process of settlement
Reinsurance premium payable
Sundry creditors and accrued expenses
Deferred senice fees
Owing to related parties

Tax related

Others

Expected to be settled within 12 months
Expected to be settled in more than 12 months

18. Deposits and short term borrowings

Unsecured

Controlled entities of the ultimate parent entity

Parent entity
Controlled entitlies of the parent entity

Expected o be settled within 12 months
Expected to be settled in more than 12 monihs

2011 2010

$m $m
29.5 19.5
4.6 5.1
11.9 14.5
0.3 0.5
36.3 8.5
34.6 13.7
117.2 61.8
117.2 61.5
- 0.3
117.2 61.8

2011 2010

$m $m
0.6 18.1
0.1 -
4.0 0.1
4.7 18.2
4.7 18.2
4.7 18.2
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19. Policy liabilities

(a) Policy liabilities

Gross policy liabilities

Gross policy liabilities ceded under reinsurance
Net policy liabilities

Expected to be realised within 12 months
Expected to be realised in more than 12 months

(b) Life insurance contract policy liabilities

Gross policy liabilities at the beginning of the year

Insurance premiums recognised as a change in gross policy liabilities (Note 6)
Claims expense recognised as a change in gross policy liabilities (Note 9)
Increase in life insurance contract policy liabilities reflected in the statement of
comprehensive income

Increase (Decrease) in gross policy liabilities

Gross policy liabilities at the end of the year

(c) Life investment contract policy liabilities

Gross policy liabilities at the beginning of the year

Life investment contract contributions recognised in policy liabilities (Note 6)
Life investment contract withdrawals recegnised in policy liabilities (Note 9)

Fee expense recognised as change in policy liabilities

Increase in life investment contract policy liabilities reflected in the statement of
comprehensive income

(Decrease) Increase in gross policy liabilities

Gross policy liabilities at the end of the year

(d) Gross policy liabilities ceded

Gross policy liabilities ceded at the beginning of the year
(Decrease) Increase in gross policy liabilities ceded
Gross policy liabilities ceded at the end of the year

Expected to be realised within 12 months
Expected to be realised in more than 12 months

(e) Unvested policyowner benefits liability

Unwested policyowner benefits at the beginning of the year
(Decrease) Increase in unvested policyowner benefits
Unwested policyowner benefits at the end of the year

2011 2010
$m $m

3,356.0 3,310.5
(78.3)  (92.8)

3,277.7 3,217.7

4401 442.4
2,9159 2,868.1

3,366.0 3,310.5

1,783.5  1,904.3
141.0 5735
(185.5)  (801.4)

118.7 1071

742 7 (120.8)

1,857.7 1,783.5

1,627.0 1,400.2

147.9  1,471.7
(291.5) (1,480.8)
- (127

114.9 148.6

(28.7)° 126.8

1,498.3 1,527.0

92.8 84.3
(14.5) 8.5
78.3 92.8
22.4 22.8
55.9 70.0
78.3 92.8
386.5  380.3
(21.0) 6.2
365.5 3865
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19. Policy liabilities (continued)

Current Previous
Basis Basis
2011 2011 2010 ©®
$m $m $m
(f) Components of net policy liabilities - insurance contracts
Best estimate liability
Value of future policy benefits " 1,942.8 1,966.4 2,160.8
Value of future expenses 213.5 199.7 203.3
Value of unrecouped acquisition expenses (177.2) (177.2)  (181.8)
Balance of future premiums (1,080.1) (1,105.9) (1,288.6)
Total best estimate liability 889.0 883.0 893.7
Value of future profits
Policyowner bonuses % 520.9 511.9 460.4
Shareholder profit margins 262.9 275.5 263.1
Total value of future profits 783.8 787.4 723.5
Total value of declared bonuses ¥ 106.6 106.6 73.5
Total net policy liabilities 1,779.4 1,777.0 1,690.7

Notes

(1) Future policy benefits include bonuses credited to policyowners in prior periods but exclude current period bonuses (as
set out in the income stalements) and future bonuses (as set out in (2)). Where business is valued by other than
projection technigues, future policy benefits inciudes the account balance.

(2) Future bonuses exclude current period bonuses.

(3) Current year declared bonuses valued in accordance with the APRA Prudential Standard LPS1.04 Valuation of Policy
Liabilities issued under Section 230A(1) of the Life Act.

(4) Using the actuarial methods and assumptions relevant at the previous reporting date, but on current in force business.

(8) Using the actuarial methods ang assumptions relevant at the current reporting date on current in force business.

(6) Prior year actuarial methods and assumptions applied on the prior year current basis.

Capital guarantees

Included in life insurance contract liabilities are amounts in respect of contracts with discretionary participation
features. The amount of policy liabilities that relates to the guaranteed element of these contracts is $1,131 million
(2010: $1,118 million).

Amounts expected to be recovered or settled no more than 12 months after the reporting date

For the majority of the invesiment contract and life insurance contract liabilities, there is no fixed settlement date.
Setllement amounts are based on the Company’s assumptions as to likely withdrawal patlerns in the various
product groups.
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20. Share capital

(a) Share capital

2011 2010
$m $m
Issued and paid up capital
38,902,529 ordinary shares, each fully paid (2010: 38,902,529) 38.9 38.9
38.9 38.9

Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one
vote per share at the shareholders’ meeting.

In the event of winding up of the Company, ordinary shareholders rank after all other shareholders and creditors
and are fully entitled to any proceeds of liquidation.

2011 2010

$m $m
Balance brought forward 38.9 39.0
Capital redemption - (0.1)
Balance at the end of the year 38.9 38.9

Under section 23(1) of the Life Act, the Company is required at all times to have an adjusted paid up share capital
of at least $10.0 miliion or higher amount as specified by the regulations.

(b) Capital management

The capital management strategy of the Group is to optimise shareholder value by managing the level, mix and
use of capital resources. The main objectives are to support the Group’s credit rating, ensure sufficient capital
resources to maintain the business and operational requirements, retain sufficient capital to exceed externally
imposed capital requirements, and ensure the Group's ability to confinue as a gaing concern. The Group's capital
policy is to hold surplus capital (over and above the Company’s target surplus) in Suncorp Group Limited as it is
the hotding company of the Group.

The Company's capital management strategy forms part of the Group plan that uses both internal and external
measures of capital.

The Company is subject to regulatory capital requirements which prescribe the amount of capital to be held
depending on the policy liabilities, investments and reinsurance assets held in the statement of financial position.
The Company holds a target surplus of capital in excess of the prescribed minimum. Where capital falls below
this target surplus, the Company undertakes one or more actions in accordance with its target surplus policy to
improve the capital position. In addition to the tests required by regulatory standards, sensitivity tests are
performed at least annually to ascertain the ability of the statutory funds to withstand various adverse scenarios.

The solvency requirements and ratios in respect of those requirements for the fife insurance business are set out
in note 27.

The Company has at all times during the current and prior financial year complied with these capital requirements.

Other than the abovementioned requirement imposed, being a life insurance business operating in Australia, the
Company is not subject to any other externally imposed capital requirements.
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21. Dividends
2011 2010
$m $m
Ordinary shares
Final dividend 2010 $0.771 (2009: $nil) per fully paid share (30.0) -
Interim dividend 2011 $0.129 (2010: $0.461) per fully paid share (5.0) (18.0)
Interim dividend 2011 $nil (2010: $0.177) per fully paid share - (6.9)
Interim dividend 2011 $0.694 (2010: $0.179) per fully paid share (27.0) (7.0)

(62.0)  (31.9)

Franking credits

The Company does not have any franking credits available to sharehoiders for subsequent financial years. On 1
July 2002, the company adopted the tax consolidation legislation which requires a tax-consolidated group to keep
a single franking account. Accordingly all franking credits are recognised in Suncorp Group Limited as the head
entity of the tax-consolidated group.

22. Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities

2011 2010
$m $m
Profit for the year 39.9 68.2
Classified as investing activities
Changes in net market value of investments realised and unrealised (note 7).
Equity securities (63.7) (97.2)
Debt securities (6.1)  (64.5)
Property securities (8.0) (18.7)
Other securities (40.6) (14.5)
Change in assets and liabilities
Decrease (increase) in:
Insurance and other recoveries receivable (7.3) (1.7)
Premiums outstanding - 0.1
interest receivable (2.8) (7.2)
Equity receivables (29.1) (6.8)
Property income receivable 1.0 0.7
Investment income receivable 6.2 11.0
Deferred acquisition costs 2.4 21.0
Other debtors (18.8) 3.8
Increase (decrease) in:
Net movement in tax balances 37.6 23.6
Premiums in advance (0.1) -
Claims outstanding 10.0 1.9
Reinsurance premiums paid (0.5) (3.4)
Policy liabilities (net) 60.0 (2.5)
Policyowner retained profits (21.0) 6.2
Deferred senice fee income (0.2) (13.8)
Other payables (25.3) 11.4
Other liabilities (0.9) 0.5
Net cash (outflow) from operating activities (56.3) (91.9)
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23. Auditors’ remuneration

2011 2010
$ $

Audit services
Auditors of the Company
KPMG Australia

Audit of financial reports 245,265 257,900
Other services
Auditors of the Company
KPMG Australia

Other assurance senices 71,332 54,100

316,597 312,000

Fees for services rendered by the entity's auditor in relation to the statutory audit are borne by ultimate parent
entity.

24. Contingent assets and liabilities

(a) Contingent assets

There are claims and possible claims made by the Company against external parties, the aggregate amount of
which cannot be readily quantified. Where considered appropriate, legal advice has been obtained. The Company
does not consider that the outcome of any such claims known o exist at the date of this report, either individually
or in aggregate, are likely to have a material effect on its operations or financial position. The directors are of the
opinion that the receivables are not required in respect of these matters, as it is not probable that future economic
benefits will eventuate or the amount is not capable of reliable measurement,

Litigation
The Company is making a claim for payments made to a third party for which the likely success of the claim is

considered probable. In the directors’ opinion, disclosure of any further information about the above matter would
be prejudicial to the interests of the Company.

(b) Contingent liabilities

There are outslanding court proceedings, claims and possible claims against the Company, the aggregate amount
of which cannot be readily quantified. Where considered appropriate, legal advice has been obtained. The
Company does not consider that the outcome of any such claims known to exist at the date of this report, either
individually or in aggregate, are likely to have a material effect on its operations or financial position. The directors
are of the opinion that provisions are not required in respect of these matters, as it is not probable that a future
sacrifice of economic benefits will be required or the amount is not capable of reliable measurement.

Details of contingent liabililies for which no provisions are included in these financial reports are as follows:
Derivative instruments

In the ordinary course of business, the Company enters into various types of investment contracts, including
derivative positions, that can give rise to contingent liabilities. It is not expected that any significant liability will
arise from these types of transactions as any losses or gains are offset by corresponding gains or losses on the
underlying exposures.

Tax consolidation

The Company is a member of a tax-consolidated group, and is jointly and severally liable for the income tax
obligations of that group in the event that the head entity of the group defauits in its payment obligations to the
Australian Tax Office. The tax sharing agreements have effect to limit this joint and several liabilities to an amount
relative to its contribution to group profit. The head entity has not been in default of its payment obligations and the
directors are of the opinion that the probability of default is remote.

Litigation
The Company has been advised of a potential claim by a third party for which a likely settlement by the Company
is not considered remote. The directors do not expect the outcome of any such claim to have a material effect on

the Company's financial position and, in the directors’ opinion, disclosure of any further information about the
above matter would be prejudicial to the interests of the Company.
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25. Summary of shareholder’s interests

Statutory Funds  Shareholder Fund Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
$m $m $m $m $m $m
Operating profit after income tax 411 57.8 (1.2) 04 39.9 58.2
Shareholder's retained profits at the beginning of the
financial year 289.8 279.4 252 9.3 315.0 288.7

Transfers of profits between funds (40.2) (47.4) 40.2 47.4 - -
Dividends paid (note 21) - - (62.0) (31.9) (62.0) {31.9)
Shareholder's retained profits at the end of the

financial year 290.7 289.8 2.2 25.2 292.9 315.0
Share capital {(note 20) - - 38.9 38.9 38.9 38.9
Caputal transfers o statutory funds 29.8 29.8 (29.8) (29.8) - -
Total shareholder's equity (note 31(d),(e)) 320.5 319.6 14:3 34.3 331.8 353.9

Components of shareholder’s interests in statutory

funds:
Shareholder’s retained profits - participating

business 91.3 96.6
Shareholder's retained profits - non-

participating business 199.4 193.2
Shareholders capital 29.8 28.8

320.5 319.6

Shareholders' access to the retained profits and shareholder’'s capital in the statutory funds is restricted to the
extent that these monies are required to meet Solvency and Capital Adequacy Standards under the Life Act.
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26. Reconciliation to Life Act operating profits and retained profit of statutory funds

(a) Allocation of operating profit

The general principles adopted in the allocation of operating profit to participating policyowners and the
shareholder, which are in accordance with the Life Act and the Company’s Articles of Association, are as follows:

Participating business

All profits, including net investment returns on policyowners’ retained profits and shareholder participating retained
profits are allocated 80 percent to policyowners and 20 percent to the shareholder.

Non-participating business

All profits, including net investment returns on shareholder capital and shareholder non-participating retained
profits, are allocated to the shareholder.

(b) Distribution of retained profits

The general principles adopted in the distribution of retained profits to participating policyowners and the
shareholder in accordance with the requirements in Section 62 of the Life Act are as follows:

Shareholder’s retained profits in a statutory fund may be transferred to the shareholder fund subject to the
statutory fund's capital requirements being maintained and the shareholder's retained profits from participating
business being at least 25 percent of policyowners’ retained profits.

Distributions of profits to participating policyowners are made in the form relevant o the type of policy.
Conventional business profits are distributed by way of reversionary and terminal bonuses and investment
account business profits are distributed by way of crediting interest to policyowners.

Bonuses and interest credits for individual product lines are determined by the Company on the principle of the
equitable treatment of participating policyowners.

(c) Details of operating profits

Policyowners' Shareholder's Total Statutory

Interests interests Funds
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
$m $m $m $m $m $m
Operating profit after income tax - - 41.1 57.8 41.1 57.8
Bonuses provided for or paid in the current period:
Interim & terminal bonus on claims paid 3.6 43 - - 3.6 4.3
Declared bonus on in force policies 106.6 73.5 - - 106.6 73.5
(Decrease) Increase in policyowner retained profits (21.0) 6.2 - - (21.0) 6.2
Life Act operating profit after income tax 89.2 84.0 41.1 57.8 130.3 141.8
Sources of the operating profit:
From non-investment linkéed business:
Participating business 89.2 84.0 22.3 21.0 111.6  105.0
Non-participating business - - 15.8 31.0 15.8 31.0
From investment linked business:
Non-participating business 3.0 5.8 3.0 5.8

89.2 84.0 41.1 57.8 130.3  141.8
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26. Reconciliation to Life Act operating profits and retained profit of statutory funds
(continued)

(d) Details of retained profits

Policyowners' Shareholder's Total Statutory

interests interests Funds
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
$m $m $m $m $m $m

Retained profits at the beginning of the financial year - 289.8 2794 289.8 2794
Liability for unvested policyowner benefits (note 19(e)) 386.5 380.3 - - 386.5 380.3

Life Act retained profits at the beginning of the
financial year 386.5 380.3 289.8 2794 676.3 659.7
Life Act operating profit after income tax (note 28) 89.2 84.0 41.1 57.8 130.3 141.8
Transfer (to)/from shareholders fund from participating
business (note 25) - (27.7)  (47.4) (27.7) (47.4)
Transfer (to)/from shareholder’s fund from non-
participating business (note 25) (12.5) (12.5)
Provision for bonuses to participating policyowners (110.2)  (77.8) - - (110.2) (77.8)
Life Act retained profits at the end of the financial
year 365.5 386.5 290.7 289.8 656.2 676.3
Policyowner retained profits at the end of the financial

(365.5) (386.5)

year (365.5) (386.5) - -
Retained profits at the end of the financial year - - 290.7 288.8 290.7  289.8

Components of Life Act retained profits at the end of

the financial year:
Policyowners’ interests 365.5 386.5 - - 365.5 3865
Shareholder's interests in participating business - - 91.3 96.6 91.3 96.6
Shareholder's interests in non-participating business - - 199.4  193.2 199.4  193.2

365.5 388.5 290.7 289.8 656.2 676.3
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27. Solvency requirements of the statutory funds

The Company is required to hold prudential reserves, over and above their life insurance contract and investment
contract liabilities, as a buffer against adverse experience and poor invesiment returns. This involves the
monitoring of two aspects of each life statutory fund - solvency and capital adequacy.

The purpose of the solvency requirement is to ensure, as far as practicable, that at any time the Company will be
able to meet all existing liabilities as they become due. The capital adequacy requirement is a separate
requirement (usually higher) that must be satisfied for the life entity to be allowed to make distributions to its
shareholders angd to operate without regulatory intervention.

Capital adequacy requirements for Australian life insurers are specified in the Life Act and LPS 3.04 Capital
Adequacy Standard with the Company holding a target surplus of capital in excess of this prescribed minimum.

The methodology and bases for determining Australian solvency requirements is in accordance with LPS 2.04
Solvency Standard, as required under the Life Act. Minimum termination values have been determined in
accordance with APRA Prudential Standard LPS 4.02 Minimum Surrender Values and Paid Up Values and APRA
Prudential Standard LPS 2.04 Solvency Standard,

The Appointed Actuary has confirmed that the available assets of each life statutory fund have exceeded the
capital adequacy and the solvency reserve required at all times during the year.

The solvency requirements, and the ratios in respect of those requirements, are as follows:

Statutory Fund Statutory Fund Total Statutory

No.1 No.2 Funds
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
$m $m $m $m $m $m
Solvency regquirement
Minimum temination value 1,869.1 1,820.5 1,496.8 1,524.9 3,365.9 3,3454
Gross policy liabilities ceded under reinsurance B' 78.3 92.8 = - 78.3 92.8
Other liabilities 113.4 77.3 10.5 95 123.9 86.8
Solvency resene ' 214.7 212.2 0.2 5.2 214.9 217.4
Solvency requirement ‘A 2,275.5 22028 1,507.5 1,539.6 3,783.0 3,742.4
Assets available for solvency reserve ‘D
Surplus or deficit (if any) of net policy liabilities
relative to net minimum termination value (85.0) (128.7) (3.2 {1.0) (88.2) (127.7)
Net assets 303.4 292.8 171 26.8 320.5 319.6
Liability for policyowner retained profits at the
end of financial year 365.5 386.5 - - 365.5 386.5
583.9 552.6 13.9 25.8 597.8 578.4
Solvency resene % (C divided by (A-B-C)) 10.8% 11.2% 0.0% 0.3% 6.2% 6.3%
Covwerage of solvency resere (times) (D divided by C) 2.7 2.6 69.5 5.0 2.8 2.7

The minimum termination value is determined in accordance with the Solvency Standard and is the base figure
upon which reserves against liability and asset risks are layered in determining the solvency requirement. The
minimum termination value represents the minimum obligation of the Company to policyowners at reporting date.
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28. Statement of sources of operating profit

Life Investment Other Life
Insurance Linked Investment
Contracts  Contracts Contracts Total Total
2011 2011 2011 2011 2010
$m $m $m $m $m
Life Act shareholder's profit in the statutory funds
The shareholders operating profit after income tax in
the statutory funds is represented by:
Investment earnings on shareholder’s retained
profits and capilal 17.2 1.6 - 18.8 20.0
Emergence of shareholder’s planned profits 26.3 - - 26.3 23.2
Experience profit (loss) 4.0) - 0.2 (3.8) 13.0
{Losses capitalised)/Reversal of capitalised loss {1.6) - - (1.6) (1.3)
Management senices profit - 1.4 - 1.4 29
Life Act shareholder's operating profit after
income tax 37.9 3.0 0.2 411 57.8
Cumulative losses carried forward at the end of
the financial year 3.4 - - 3.4 1.8
Life Act policyowners' operating profit in the
statutory funds
The Life Acl policyowners' operating profit after
income tax in the statutory funds is represented by:
Investment eamings on retained profits 25.1 - - 251 21.5
Emergence of policyowner planned profits 60.5 - - 60.5 57.0
Experience profit/(loss) 3.6 - - 3.6 5.5
Life Act policyowners' operating profit after
income tax 89.2 - - 89.2 84.0

29. Asset restrictions, managed assets and trustee activities

Restrictions on assets

Investments held in the life insurance statutory funds can only be used within the restrictions imposed under the
Life Act and the constitution of the Company. The main restrictions are that the assets in a fund can only be used
to meet the liabilities and expenses of that fund, to acquire investments to further the business of the fund, or as
distributions. Participating policyowners can receive a distribution when solvency requirements are met, whilst
shareholders can only receive a distribution when the higher level of capital adequacy requirements are met.

Trustee activities

During the financial year Suncorp Portfolic Services Limited (SPSL), a related party of the Company, acted as
licensed trustee in relation to various superannuation policies issued by the Company. The activities of SPSL are
managed separately from the operations of the Company.
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30. Segment information

The economic entity operates principally in the life insurance industry in Australia.

31. Statutory funds segment information

(a) Statutory funds information

Details of the separate statutory funds established to account for the different types of life insurance business
wrilten by the Company are as follows:

Types of Policies Written Major Products

No. 1 Statutory Fund

Fully or partially capital Individual: Whole of Life, Endowment, Term Life. (nvestment
guaranteed, ordinary and Account, Trauma, Disabilily
superannuation business Group: Group Life, Managed Fund
Annuities: Immediate, Deferred
No. 2 Statutory Fund
Investment-linked ordinary and Individual: Investment-linked products
superannuation business Group: Investment-linked products
Annuities: Investment-linked: Deferred

All policies written and major products are offered within Australia only.
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Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2011

32. Controlled entities

Managed investment schemes

The Company deems controf 10 exist where it owns at least 50% of the issued units in managed investment
schemes. The Company had recognised control for the following managed investment schemes during the year
ended 30 June 20711 and control continues to be recognised:

2011 2010
% %

Suncorp Investment Management Global Macre Tactical Asset Allacation Trust 89 89
Suncorp Investment Management Property Securities Trust 67 79
Suncorp Investment Management Australian Equities Trust 90 89
Suncorp Investment Managemenl Australian Fixed Interest Trust 84 87
Suncorp Investment Management World Equities Trust 71 74
Suncorp Investment Management Australian Cash Trust 78 92
Suncomp Investment Management World Fixed Interest Trust 93 92
Controlled entities of Suncorp Investment Management World Fixed Interest Trust

- Suncorp Investment Management Mortgage Backed Trust - 88
Suncomp Investment Management Imputation Trust 62 56

The financial statements of the Company are separate financial statements. Consolidated financial statements have
not been prepared as the Company has no publicly iraded debt or equity instruments and its ultimate parent entity
prepares consolidated financial statements for public use.
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Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2011

33. Related parties
(a) Key management personnel compensation

Key management personnel ("KMP”) compensation is provided by the ultimale parenl company, Suncorp Group
Limited (non-executive directors) and a relaled party of the ultimate parent company (executive directors and
executives). The total of this compensation is as follows:

2011 2010
$ $
Short-term employee benefits 16,566,169 17,730,527
Long-term employee benefits 3,010,858 1,080,071
Post-employment benefits 1,310,734 850,239
Share-based payments 4,787,216 5,869,121
Termination benefits 1,317,925 4,868,330

26,992,902 30,378,288

The ultimate parent entity has determined the compensation of KMPs in accordance wilh their roles within the
entire Suncorp Group Limited. Employee service contracts do not include any compensation, including bonuses,
specifically related to the role of KMP of the Company and to allocate a figure may in fact be misleading. There is
no link between KMP compensation and the financial results of the Company. Therefore, as there is no
reasonable basis for allocating a KMP compensation amount to the Company, the entire compensation of the
KMPs has been disclosed above.

Other key management personnel transactions
Transactions with directors and executives are conducted on arm'’s length terms and conditions, and are deemed

trivial or domestic in nature. These transactions are in the nature of personal investment and life insurance
policies.

Apart from the details disclosed in this note, no director, executive or their related parties has entered into a
material contract with the Company during the reporting period, and there were no material contracts involving
directors or a director related entity subsisting at the end of the reporting period.

Identity of related parties

The Company has related party relationships with its subsidiaries (see below), its key management personnel
(refer to disclosures for key management personne! on preceding pages) and other entities within the wholly-
owned group (which consists of Suncorp Group Limited and its wholly-owned subsidiaries). The immediate parent
entity and the ultimate parent entity in the wholly-owned group is Suncerp Group Limited.

Other related parties

Key management personnel related parties

A number of key management personnel hold positions in other entities that result in them having control or
significant influence over the financial or operating policies of these entities.

A number of these entities transacted with the Company or its subsidiaries in the reporting period. The terms and
conditions of the transactions with the other related parties were no more favourable than those available, or
which might reasonably be expected to be available, on similar transactions to non-key management personnel
related entities on an arm'’s length basis.
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Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2011

33. Related parties (continued)

(b) Other related party transactions

Transactions between the Company and related parties in the wholly-owned group consisted of advances made
and repaid, dividends received and paid, insurance premiums received and paid, fees received and paid for
adminisirative, properly and portfolio management services and interest received and paid. All these transactions
were on a normal commercial basis except that some advances may be interest free.

The aggregate amounts included in the determination of profit before tax that resulted from transactions with
related parties are:

2011 2010
$ $

Distribution fee income:
Controlled entity of parent entity (1,454,656) (1,358,445)
(1,454,6586) (1,358,445)

Management fee income:
Parent entity - (269.291)
Controlled entily of parent entity (346,638) (7,277,838)
(346,638) (7,547,129)

Administration expenses (revenue):

Ultimate parent entity 560 -

Controlled entities of uftimate parent entity 13,896,793  3,260,493.0
Parent entity 2,736,575 (590,031.0)
Controlled entities of parent entity 15,803,353 13,706.632.0

32,437,281 16,377,094

Investment expenses:
Controlled entity of ultimate parent entity - 580,038
580,038

Dividends paid or due and payable :
Ultimate parent entity 62,000,000 31,900,000
62,000,000 31,900,000

In the prior year, the Easysuper business in the Company was migrated to a new Wealthsmart platform in Suncorp
Portfolio Services Limited (SPSL). This was facilitated through the sale of a $13.8 million management right to
SPSL. All associated deferred acquisition costs ($29.3 miillion), deferred fees, $12.9 million and instalment fees
(3$3.2 million) on the Easysuper business (including associated deferred tax balances of $5.8 million), were written
off through the profit and loss (net impact of the write off was $13.8 million) in the prior year.
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Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2011

33. Related parties (continued)
(b) Other related party transactions (continued)

The aggregale amounts receivable from, and payable to, in each class of related parties at balance date are as
follows:

2011 2010
$ $
Loans, advances and other receivables:
Ultimate parent entity 468,461 4,421,335
Parent entity 6,213 -
Related entity 4,501,718 10,944,849

4,876,392 15,366,184

Payable. deposits and short term borrowings:

Ultimate parent enhty 36,348,368 26,122,163
Parent enhty 18,818 -
Related entity 38,090,042 14,235,361

75,457,228 40,357,524

34. Subsequent events

The Company's parent entity Suncorp Life Holdings Limited approved a capital injection of $21.0 million into the
Company on 17 August 2011.

There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any item,
transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, to
affect significanlly the operations of the Company, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the
Company in future financial years,

Page 60



Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited
Directors’ declaration

In the opinion of the Direclors of Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited ("lhe Company"):

(a)

(6)

the financial statements and notes, set out on pages 6 (o 60, are In accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001, including:

() gving a2 true and far wvew of the Company's financial posilion 2as at
30 June 2011 and of its performance, for the financial year ended on thal date; and

(iy complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Auslralian Accounting
Interpretations) and the Corporations Regufations 2001;

the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in
note 1.1; and

there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debls as and when they
become due and payable.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors:

Dated at Brisbane this 24 August 2011

ohn D
Director

—

Patrick J R Snowball
Managing Director

Story
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Suncorp Life & Superannuation
Limited

Report on the financial report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited
(the Company), which comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2011, and the
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows
for the year ended on that date, notes | to 34 comprising a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information and the directors’ declaration.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that
gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the
Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error. [n note 1.1, the directors also state, in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standard AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements, that the financial
statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing
Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requiremenis relating to audit
engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinjon on the effectiveness o[ the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
report.

We performed the procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial report
presents fairly, in accordance with the Corporations Acr 2001 and Australian Accounting
Standards, a true and fair view which is consistent with our understanding of the Company's
financial position and of its performance,

We believe that the audit cvidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
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Independence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001.

Auditor’s opinion
In our opinion:

(a) the financial repori of Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited is in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001, including:

(1) giving a true and fair view of the Company’s financial position as at 30 June 201} and of
its performance for the year ended on that date; and

(1) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

(b) the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as
disclosed in note 1.1.

David Kells
Partner

Sydney
24 August 20]1
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